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454/20-15. Violations

& 20-15. Violations. The commission ol a single act prohibited by this Act
or prohibited by the rules promulgated under this:Act or a violation of a
disciplinary order issued under this Act constitutes a violation of this Act.
P.A. 91-245, Art. 20, § 20-15, ell. Dec, 31, 1999,

Repeal of Act
For repeal of Act, see note preceding 225 ILCS 454/1-1.
Historical and Statutory Notes

HLRev.Stan 1991, ch. 11, ¥ 5805,
225 1.CS 45575 {1998}

Prior Laws:
P.A. 83-101,§ 5.
P.A. 86-925,§ 19,

. Library References
Broldrs =3,

Westlaw Topic No., 65,

C.LS, Brokers 8§ 17, 38 10 70

Notes of Decisions

In geperal 1 and commingling funds with that money for
purposes othee than set forth in dease; hence,
plaintif, who had seught adjudication of non-
dischargeability of debt an basis of alleged
frand, which was not established i adversary

1, ko gencrad, prior law
Chapier 7 (11 U.S.C.A.§ 701 et seq.) debior,

who was a licensed real estate broker, violated
rules promulgared under the Real Estaie Bro-
kers and Salesmen License Act by depositing
check for lease payment in personal account

procecding, was nonetheless entided 10 reim-
barsement from the Dlinois Department of Edu-
cation and  Registration.  In re Konchan,
Bhrtey NIRI 1984, 36 B.R. 393, Brokers & 4

SR,

Disciplinary actions;

§ 20-20. Disciplinary actions; causes. OBRE may refuse 1o issue or renew
a license, may place on probation, suspend, or revoke any license, or may
censure, reprimand, or otherwise discipline or impose a civil fine not to exceed
$25,000 upen any licensee hereunder for any one or any combination of the
following causes:

{a) When the applicant or licensee has, by false or fraudulent representation,
obtained or seught 1o obtain a ficense.

(b) When the applicant or licensee has been convicted ol any crime, an
essential element of which is dishonesty or fraud or larceny, embezzlement, or
obtaining money, property, or credit by false pretenses or by means of &
confidence garme; has been convicted in this or another state of & crime that is a
felony under the laws of this State, or has been convicted of a felony in a
foderal court.

(c) When the applicant or licensee has been adjudged to be a person under
legal disability or subject to involuntary adimission or to meet the standard for
judicial admission as provided in the Mental Health and Developmental Dis-
abilities Code.*

(d) When the licensee performs or attempts to perform any act as a broker or
salesperson in a retail sales establishment from an office, desk, or space that is
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not separated lrom the main retail business by a separate and distinct area
within the establishment.

(e) Discipline of a licensee by another state, the Diswict of Columbin, a
terrvitory, a foreign nation, a governmental agency, or any other entity author
ized to impose discipline if at least one of the grounds for that discipline is the
same as or the equivalent of one of the grounds for discipline set {orth in this
Act, in which case the only issue will be whether one of the grounds for that
discipline is the same or equivalent to one of the grounds for discipline under
this Act.

(f) When the applicant or licensee has engaged in real estate activity without
a license or alter the licensee’s license was expired or while the license was
inoperative.

(g) When the applicant or licensee attempts (o subvert or cheat on the Real
FEstate License Exam or continuing education exam or aids and abets an
applicant o subvert or cheat on fhe Real Bstate License Exam or continuing
education exam administered pursuant Lo this Acl, _

(h) When the Heensee in performing, attempting o perform, or pretending to
perform any act as a broker, salesperson, or leasing agent or when the licensee
in handling his or her own property, whether held by deed, option, or other-
wise, 15 found guilty ofd

(1) Making any substantial misrepresentation or uniruthful advertising.

{2) Making any false promises of a chavacter hlu,ly to influence, persuade,
or induce.

(3) Pursuing a continued and flagrant course of misrepresentation or ihe
making of false promises through licensecs, employees, agents, advertising,
or otherwise.

(4) Any misleading or untruthiul advertsing, or using any trade name or
insignia of membership in any real estate organization of which the licensee
is not a member. :

(5) Aciing for more than one parly in a transaction: wuhoul providing
written notice 1o all parties for whom the licensee acts.

(6) Representing or allempting 1o represent a broker other than the spon-
soring broker. ,

{7) Failure to account for or to remit any moneys or documments coming
irto his or her possession that belong to others.

(8) Failure to maintain and deposit in a special account, separate and
apart from persenal and other business accounts, all escrow moneys belong-
ing to others entrusted to a licensee while acting as a real estaie broker,
escrow agent, or temporary cusiodian of the funds of others or failure to
maintain all escrow moneys on deposit in the account until the wransactions
are consummated o1 lerminaled, except to the extent that the moncys, oy any
part thercof, shall be disbursed prior to the consummation or termination in
accordance with {i) the written direction of the principals 1o the transaction
or their duly authorized agents, () directions providing for the release,
payment, or distribution of escrow moneys contained in any written contract
sigried by the principals to the transaction or their duly authorized agents, or
(iii} pursuant to an order ol a court of competent jurisdiction. The account
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shall be nowinterest bearing, untess the character of the deposit is such that
payment of interest thercon is otherwise required by law or unless the
principals to the transaction specificaily require, in writing, that the deposit
be placed in an inferest bearing account.

(9) Failure to make available to the real estate enforcement personnel of
ORRE during normal business hours all escrow yecords and related docu- 7
ments maintained in connection with the practice of real esiate within 24 '
hours of a request for those documents by OBRE personnel. ;

(10} Failing to fwrnish copies upon request of all documents relating Lo a
real estaie transaction 1o ali parties executing them.

(11} Failure of a sponsoring broker to imely provide information, sponsor
dseentermination of licenses.Lo QBEE -
(12} Engaging in dishonorable, unethical, or unprolessional co
character Likely to .dccwmwgﬁubim
TITCOmMIngling the money or property of others with his or her own.
(14 Employing any person on a purely femporary or single deal basis as a

means of evading the law regarding payment of commission to nonlicensees
on some contemplated transactions,

(15) Permitting the use of his or her license as a broker to enable a
salesperson or unlicensed person o operate a real estate business withoult
actua) participation therein and control thereof by the broker. '

(16) Any other conduct, whether of the same or a dilferent character from
that specilied in this Section, that constitutes dishonest dealing.

(17) Displaying a “for rent’" or “for sale” sign on any property without the
written consent of an owner or his or her duly authorized agent or advertis-
ing by any means that any property is for sale or for rent without the written
consent of the owner or his or her authorized agent.

(18) Failing to provide information requested by OBRE, within 30 days of

_ the request, either as the result ol a formal or informal complaint to OBRE ov
; as a vesult of a random audit conducted by OBRE, which would indicate a
violation of this Act.

(19) Advertising by means of a blind advertisement, except as otherwise
permitied in Section 10-30 of this Act,

(20} Offering guaranteed sales plans, as defined in clause (A) of this
subdivision {20), except to the extent hereinalter set forth:

(A) A “guaranteed sales plan” is any real estate purchase or sales plan
whereby a licensce enters o 2 conditional o unconditional written
contract with a seller by the terms of which a licensee agrees (o purchase &
property of the seller within 2 specified period of time at a specific price in
the event the property is not sold in accordance with the terms of a isting
contract between the sponsoring broker and the selier or on other terms
acceplable to the seller.

(B) A licensee offering a guaranteed sales plan shall provide the details
and conditions of the plan in writing to the parly o whom the plan is
offered. o

A(C) A licensee offering a guaranteed sales plan shall provide to the party
to whom the plan i$ offered evidence of sulficient financial resources Lo
satisfy the commitment to purchase undertaken by the broker in the plan.

555

nduct of a




225 ILCS 454/20-20 _PROFESSIONS AND OCCUPATIONS

(D) Any licensee offering a puaranteed sales plan shall undertake 1o
market the property of the seller subject to the plan in the same manner in
which the broker would market any other property, unless the agreerment
with the seller provides otherwise, :

() Any licensee who fails to perform on a guarantecd sates plan in strict
accordance with its terms shall be subject o all the peaalties provided in
this Act for violations thereol and, in addition, shall be subject 1o a civil fine
payable to the parly injured by the defauit in an amount of up 1o $25,000,
(21) Influencing or attempting {0 influence, by any words or acts, a

prospective sclier, purchaser, occupant, Jandlord, or tenant of real estate, in
connection with viewing, buying, or leasing real estale, so as to promote oy
tend to promote the continuance or maintenance of racially and religiously
segregaled housing or so as 1o retard, obstruct, or discourage racially
integrated housing on or Iin any street, black, neighborheod, or conmmunity.

(22) Engaging in any act that constitules a violation of any provision of
Article 3 of the 1llinois Human Rights Act,? whether or not a complaint has
been fled with or adjudicated by the Human Ri ghts Commission.

(23) Inducing any party o a contract of sale or lease or brokerage
agreement 1o break the contract of sale or lease or brokerage agreement for
the purpose of substituting, in licu thereof, a new contract for sale or lease or
brokerage agreement with a thivd party.

(24) Negotiaiing & sale, exchange, or lease of real estate directly with any
person il the licensee knows that the person has a writfen exclusive broker-
age agreement with another broker, unless specifically avthorized by that

“broker.

(25) When a licensee is also an attorney, acting as the attorney for cither
the buyer or the seller in the same transaction in which the licensee is acting
or has acled as a broker or salesperson, '

(26) Advertising.or offering merchandise or services as free i any condi-
tions or obligations necessary for receiving the merchandise or services ave
not disclosed i the same advertisement or offer.  These conditions or
obligations mclude without limitation the requirement that the recipient
attend a promotional aclivity or visit a real estate site.  As used in this
cubdivision 26), “lrec”includes terms such as “award”, “prize”, "no
charge”, "free of charge"”, "without charge”’, and similay words or phrases
that reasonably lead a person 1o believe that he or she may receive or has
been selected o receive something of value, without any conditions or
obligations on the part ol the recipient,

(27) Disregarding or violating any provision of the Land Sales Registration
Act of 1989 % the lllinois Real Estate Time-Share Act,t or the published ruics
promulgated by OBRE Lo enforee those Acls.

(28) Violating the terms of a disciplinary order issued by OBRE,

(29) Paying compensation in violation of Article 107 of this Act,

{30) Requiring a party 1o a transaction who is not a client of the licensee 10
allow the licensee (o retain a portion of the escrow moneys for payment of
the licensee’s conumission or cxpenses as a condition for release of the
cscrow moneys 1o that party.
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Note 1

(31) Disregarding or violating any provision of this Act or the published
rules promulgated by OBRE to enforce this Act or aiding or abetting any
individual, partnership, registered limited liability partnership, limited liabili-
ty company, er corperation in disregarding any provision of this Act or the
published rules promulgated by OBRE to enforce ihis Act. '

(32) Failing to provide the minimum services required by Section 15-75 of
(his Act when acting under an exclusive brokerage agreement.

poAL 91-245, Art. 20, § 20-20, ¢ff. Dec. 31, 1999, Amended hy P.A. 93-957, § 5, cff.

Aug. 19, 2004,
V403 TLCS 51100 a1 seq.
2775 1LCS 53101 ¢t sea.
3765 1.CS 85/1 ot seq.
4765 TLCS 10041 et seq. {repealed).
5225 TLCS 45471045 el seq,

Repeal of Act
For repeal of Act, see note preceding 225 11LLS 454/1-1.

Historical and Statutory Notes

PLAL 93957, § 5, added subd, (32

Library References

Brokers €»3.
Wostiaw Tapic No. 65,
1.5, Brokes §§ 17, 38 o 70

Research Relerences

Encyelopedias
litinois Law and Practice Brokers § 10, Disci-
plinary Actions Relative to Real Bstate Li-
CONSes.
Mineis Law and Practice Brokers § 38, Per-
sons Briited 1o Reeeive Compensation.
Eorms
Minois Civil Pracice Porms § §9:8, Parchas:
er Apainst Real Bsiate Broker {or Misrepre-
sentation.

THinois Civil Practice Forms § 11840, Sale o
Conveyance of Real Estate-—liouse--Mis:
representation  of  Condition by Sellors,
Realior, and Exterminator,

Treatises and Practice Alds
14 Lineis Practice Series § 3:99, Earoest
Money and Down Payment - Barnest Mon-
ey Bserow Account.

Notes of Decisions

Due process 1

1. Duse process

Real cstasc broker's § 1983 action against 11li-
nois Department of Professional Regulation
(DPR), DBPR officials, private real estate agen-
ciss and brokers, amd court clerk, alleging due
process violations growing out of license sus.
Pension, was not barred by Reoker-Feldman
doctrine, coven though many of faciual issues
alleged were addressed in procecdings regard-
ing license suspension in state cowrl, which
broker nnsucceossiuily appealed, where broker
was not chatlenging state-court judgment, noth-
ing in complaint asked distvict cownt 10 Feviow
final decisions of state cirenil or appellate
courts, and broker alleged injury resulting rom
conspiracy between DPR officials and private
defendants leading 10 adminisirative decision (o

suspend Heense. Madsen v, Depariment of Pro-
{fessional Regulation, C.A7 (IH1)2001, 12 JFed.
Appx. 382, 2001 WL 674015, Unreported.
Courts &= 509

Mleged failure of Department of Professional
Regulation (DPR) and DPR officials ta comply
with state rules pertaining to DPR hearings and
disciplinary proccedings was not lederal due
process violation, even though real estate bro-
ker had liberty interest in pursuing profession;
due process in <isciplinary proceeding required
only nolice and hearing at which broker could
e present, both of which real cstate broker
received, and allegations thal certain staie pro-
cedures wore not {ollowed did not raise any
federal constitional concern,  Madsen v, De-
partment  of Professional  Regulations, C.A7
(111)2001, 12 Fed.Appx. 382, 2001 WL 674615,
Unreported.  Brokers € 3; Constitutional Law
& 4293
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